
 WESTAMPTON TOWNSHIP  
COMMITTEE MEETING 
        September 19, 2023 

7:00 PM Regular Meeting, Courtroom 
 

1. Call Regular Meeting to Order  

2. Requirements of the Sunshine Law (This meeting was advertised in the Burlington County 
Times on January 6, 2023 and electronic notice was given pursuant to N.J.A.C. 5:39-1.5).  

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. Moment of Silence  

5. Roll Call 

6. Presentation 

a. Presentation of Kickball Tournament Trophy, Ms. Casey Carty 

b. 140-23 Resolution Appointing Chief of Police 
Swearing in of Brian Ferguson, Chief of Police 

7. Approval of Minutes 

a. September 5, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes 
b. September 5, 2023 Executive Session Minutes 

 
8. Monthly Reports: 

a. Construction 
b. Police 
c. Public Works 
d. Tax Collector 
e. Court 

 
9. Open Meeting to Public Comment on Agenda Items Only – Please remember to state your 

name and address for the record.                    

10. RESOLUTIONS:  
a. 141-23 Payment of Vouchers – this resolution approves the payment of bills through 

09/19/2023 
b. 142-23 Resolution Appointing Municipal Clerk 
c. 143-23 Resolution Approving Tax Refund 

 
11. Open Meeting for Public Comment - Please remember to state your name and  

                        address for the record. 
 

12. Dates to Remember: Next Township Committee Meeting October 3rd @ 7PM, Historic 
Commission Sept 27th @ 7PM, Land Development Board Meeting October 4th @7PM, 



Recreation Committee Meeting October 11th @7PM, Timbuctoo Day Sept 30th @ 11AM 
Church Street, Fire Prevention Open House Oct 12th @6PM. 

13. Committee Liaison Reports/Comments  

14. Executive Session: 

a. Resolution No. 09.19.2023 - Resolution Authorizing the Township Committee and 
Support Staff to Meet in Private Session and Authorizing the Exclusion of the Public 
From that Portion of the Meeting Dealing with Specific Issues Requiring Non-Public 
Discussions: Attorney-Client Privilege – Personnel. 

15.  Adjournment  
 
Please note: 

During the first public comment period, any resident or taxpayer of Westampton is welcome to comment on 
any governmental item of concern limited to the ordinances and resolutions being considered this evening. 
The second public comment period is open to any item of concern. A total of thirty (30) minutes has been 
allocated for each of the public comment periods. This time may be extended by the Committee.  

If you wish to be heard, come to the podium and give your name and address to the Clerk for the record. The 
amount of discussion of any single speaker will be limited to three (3) minutes. Large groups are urged to 
select someone to represent them. No speaker shall engage in any personally offensive, derogatory or 
abusive remarks. The Mayor shall immediately call to order any speaker who violates this provision. An 
officer of the WTPD may remove any disruptive person at the Mayor’s discretion.   

Public Comment is an opportunity for the public to present their views—both positive and negative. It is not 
a question-and-answer period. Neither the Mayor nor Committee Members will engage in a back-and-forth 
exchange so speakers are encouraged to present all their views. The Mayor as well as any Committee 
Member may respond to any comment after such speaker is finished. The Mayor may refer the speaker to the 
Township Administrator, Department Head or any Committee Member to respond in writing. 



Township of Westampton 

September 12, 2023  1:39:54PM

710 RANCOCAS ROAD

WESTAMPTON, NJ 08060

609-2671891 

OFFICE OF CONSTRUCTION OFFICIAL

Construction Permit Activity Report

RANGE:  08/01/2023  To  08/31/2023

$4,038,706.40

 0

 0

$0.00

0

1

15

25

$1,900.00

$1,878.00

$789.00

$1,355.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$1,900.00

$1,809.00

$789.00

$1,355.00

$0.00

$5,853.00

$0.00

$7,675.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$7,675.00

$7,675.00

$0.00 $0.00$0.00

10

16

34

4

$0.00

$0.00

 1

 23

 6

$0.00

$4,038,706.40

Cu.ft

Sq.ft

$7,675.00

$0.00

$0.00

$69.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$69.00

$5,853.00

$7,675.00

$0.00

$13,528.00

$0.00

$900.00

$14,428.00

SUMMARY

CONSTRUCTION COSTS COUNT

Cost Of Construction: Cubic Footage: Permit Issued:

Cost Of Alteration: Square Footage: Updates Issued:

Cost Of Demolition: All Fees Waived:

Total Cost: Municipal Fees Waived:

PERMIT FEES

Building:

Electrical:

Building:

Electrical:

Building:

Electrical:

Fire :Fire : Fire :

Plumbing:

Elevator:

Mechanical:

Plumbing: Plumbing:

Elevator: Elevator:

Mechanical: Mechanical:

ADMIN FEES WAIVED FEES TOTAL FEES

 Building Fees:

Electrical Fees:

Fire Fees:

Plumbing Fees:

Elevator Fees:

Mechanical Fees:

* Total Waived: Technical Fees:

DCA Calculated Fees Waived Fees Collected Fees

Volume Training Fee:

Alteration TrainingFee:

Sub total Training Fee:

TECHNICAL ISSUES

Building Technical:

Electrical Technical:

Fire Protection Technical:

Plumbing Technical:

Elevator Technical:

Mechanical Technical:

Certificate of Occupancy Fee:

Waived Certificate Fees:

Sub Total Certificate Fees:

PERMIT FEES:

FEES:

CERTIFICATE FEES:

NET TOTAL FEES:

PENALTIES COLLECTED:

CCO FEES:

OTHER FEES:

GRAND TOTAL FEES:

CERTIFICATE ISSUES

Certificate of Occupancy:

Certificate of Approval:

Certificate of Continued Occupancy:

$0.00MIN FEES:

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00DCA Minimum Fee:

* By State law (see N.J.S. 52:27D-126c):

$69.00 

$0.00 

* By Municipality (see N.J.S. 52:27D-126b):

Report Run For Township of Westampton





















  

September 7, 2023 

To: Mayor & Committee 

From: Christian Taylor, Director of Public Works 

Subject: August 2023 Department Report 

Roads 

Brush:  Brush collection was normal this month, with a total of 13.13 tons of brush being 

collected. Brush collection took a total of 6 days to complete.   

Street Repairs:  There are some issues with dead/ dangerous trees along Third Steet in 

Rancocas. I am currently working with PSE&G to produce a scope of work.  This will be 

scheduled and taken care of by PSE&G. (Update) Work will start mid-September. The 

scope of work will involve trimming of some trees and the removal of others depending 

on the amount of trimming needed.  The head of the project for PSE&G is a registered 

master arborist with the state and is a well-versed expert in the proper care and 

maintenance of trees. I have been in contact with him on this project numerous times 

discussing the issues with the decaying and unhealthy trees along that tree line, we are 

on the same page with what needs to be done.  Rest assured there has been a lot of 

discretion in deciding the proper course of action to protect the primary power wires 

feeding Rancocas Village and the safety of the public. The township is working on a plan 

for restoration of the tree line. This plan will provide the necessary protection from 

Rancocas Road and enhance the beauty of the historic Village of Rancocas.   

  We have received a quote from the engineer for repair of the storm drain on 

Tuliptree and Dogwood Drives. The engineer and Solicitor are currently working on the 

legal and planning stages of the project, and it is moving forward for completion. 

Hopefully, by the next report I will have a start date for this.    

 The failed drainage pipe at the intersection of Tallowood and Sherwood is 

scheduled to be completed by the DPW during the week of September 18th.  



The sinkhole at the intersection of Bloomfield Drive and Russo Drive has been repaired 

internally by a pipe company.   DPW will be addressing the sinkhole in the road and 

doing the asphalt repair the week of September 18th as well.   DPW will also be 

completing other minor road repairs and storm drain repairs at this time.   

Next month, I will include a list of roads going out for repaving please stay tuned.   

The residential side of Govpilot is live on the mobile application if residents 

would like to start using it. Go into your mobile Apps. Store and lookup GovAlert and 

download the app.  The Tutorials were placed on the Township Facebook page if 

someone would like to access them.  

The link to “Report A Concern” is now on the township website.  We encourage 

residents to use this link for their needs in the township. All the concerns are now 

routed directly to the departments that they are designated. The link can be found at 

www.westamptonnj.gov   Residents will still be able to call directly and report their 

needs and concerns as well.  

Recycling:  A normal flow of requests for new cans and lid repairs continues. We have 

new cans in stock, THE COST IS 60$ AND MUST BE PAID AT THE MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

BEFORE DELIVERY. We are fine with lid replacements and will continue to service those 

requests in a timely fashion.  

Leaf Collection: Completed for the Spring, next collection will be the last week in 

October 2023.  

Grass: Grass season is moving along smoothly and on track.      

Snow:   Wrapped up for the season. 

Facilities 

Municipal Building: I WOULD LIKE TO TAKE A SECOND AND THANK THE DPW FOR ALL 

THE HARD WORK THEY DID ON THE FIRST FLOOR OF THE MUNICIPAL BUILDING. WE 

WOULDN’T HAVE BEEN ABLE TO COMPLETE THIS WITH OUT YOUR SPECIALIZED SKILLS 

AND EFFORT!  ALSO, A SPECIAL THANKS TO THE OTHER MUNICIPAL DEPARTMENTS 

FOR WORKING WITH US DURING THIS PROJECT.  

  DPW has wrapped up the renovations and flooring on the first floor of the municipal 

building. The flooring and renovations were a much-needed addition to the building.   

Sports complex\Parks: N/A 

http://www.westamptonnj.gov/


 

 Spring Meadows:  As I write this the playground should be completed or just about 

completed.  We will be keeping every one of the progress on our Facebook page.   The 

Township is looking into options for renovating the basketball court and tennis court in 

the spring.    

Rolling Hills/ Rolling Hills East: Westampton Township is proud to announce that a 

grant for $45,000 was procured from the State for the replacement of the park.  We will 

keep you informed as progress continues.  

Tarnsfield Park: N/A        

DPW Building: N/A 

Rec. Center: N/A 

Firehouse: Emergency Services contacted me about an uneven pavement issue in one of 

the garage bays. We will be making repairs very shortly to address the issue.   

American Legion: N/A.  

Equipment Repairs & Maintenance 

Public Works:    

#41-Replace hydraulic hoses for quick connects on rear of truck 

Construction: Oil/ filter change 

#46-Fan motor resistor 

#45-Hydraulic hose 

#36-Hydraulic house, Radiator 

#65-Warning lights 

#13-mower belt 

 

Police: 

#2702-Oil/ filter change 

#2709- Oil/filter change 



#2708 Batteries 

 

Fire Dept.: 

N\A 

Recreation: 

Personnel Training:   

Expenses:   

* For any services rendered, please also check the bill list accompanying the Committee 

agenda. Some costs for goods may be on a bill list subsequent to this report. 

 

 



MONTHLY REPORT

Westampton Township
Office of the Tax Collector

Aug-23

Receipts Month-to-Date Year-to-Date
Current Year Taxes 6,691,243.13                   21,306,995.63              
Prior Year Delinquent Taxes 4,470.37                            192,353.32                    
Preliminary (2024) Year Taxes 210,442.73                       215,688.27                    
Interest on Taxes 1,539.94                            27,613.16                       
Arrears 34.14                                  10,786.08                       
Outside Lien Redemption 10,543.28                         90,544.59                       
Municipal Lien Redemption -                                      -                                   
Tax Search Fees -                                      -                                   
Returned Check Fees -                                      -                                   
PILOT payments 71,591.44                         142,822.26                    
Sub Total: 6,989,865.03                 21,986,803.31            
Less NSF/Returned Checks: (5,695.87)                          (28,150.02)                     
Total: 6,984,169.16                 21,958,653.29            

Prepared by:  Kathy Merkh, Tax Collector



Westampton Municipal Court

2023 January February March April May June July August September October November December TOTALS

Total Revenue $35,917.17 $39,214.46 $37,238.34 $35,250.92 $34,887.92 $35,196.71 $27,056.05 $244,761.57

Paid to Twp. $11,526.98 $13,685.54 $12,216.24 $12,296.22 $12,273.23 $14,085.83 $9,992.79 $86,076.83

Paid to County $2,955.00 $3,167.50 $2,034.00 $2,975.48 $3,182.50 $4,128.25 $2,561.00 $21,003.73

Paid to State $20,616.19 $21,660.92 $22,789.60 $19,424.22 $18,888.69 $16,580.63 $13,595.26 $133,555.51

County Lab Fees $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Public Defender Fees $689.00 $455.50 $138.50 $535.00 $423.50 $392.00 $892.00 $3,525.50

Traffic Added 466 553 418 466 395 294 332 2924
149 Local 317 

State

208 Local 345 

State

148 Local 270 

State

198 Local 268 

State

195 Local 200 

State

150 Local       

144 State

196 Local       

136 State

Traffic Disposed 514 513 582 535 525 502 470 3641

Criminal Added 29 18 21 10 32 11 27 148

Criminal Disposed 44 26 36 22 48 33 27 236

Fish & Game $100.00 $200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $300.00

Weights & Measures $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Restitution $30.00 $45.00 $60.00 $20.00 $120.00 $10.00 $15.00 $300.00



TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
 

RESOLUTION APPOINTING 
WESTAMPTON TOWNSHIP POLICE DEPARTMENT 

CHIEF 
 

RESOLUTION NO.140-23 
 

WHEREAS, the Township Committee developed a promotional policy for the Chief of 
Police that includes both subjective and objective criteria; and  

WHEREAS, the testing elements have been completed and the highest ranking candidate 
has been selected for promotion to Chief of Police; and  

WHEREAS, Lieutenant Brian Ferguson was the highest ranking candidate upon 
completion of the evaluation process; and 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Committee of the Township 
of Westampton in the County of Burlington and State of New Jersey that Brian Ferguson be 
promoted to Chief of Police. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Township Administrator 
be authorized to negotiate a contract with Chief Ferguson which shall be brought to the 
Township Committee for approval with an effective date of September 1, 2023 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township 
Committee of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their 
meeting held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, 
Westampton, New Jersey 08060 on September 19, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township 
Clerk.  

 
 

 
________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
Roll Call Vote 

Committee 
Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       

 

 



TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
 

APPROVING PAYMENT OF VOUCHERS 
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 09/19/2023 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 141-23 

 
 WHEREAS, the Township is in receipt of various vouchers submitted by vendors and/or 
other claimants for goods rendered and/or services provided to the Township; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Chief Financial Officer has certified that there exists a line-item 
appropriation against which each claim shall be charged and that there are sufficient funds 
available for the payment of each voucher; and 
 
 WHEREAS, each voucher contains a certification of a department head, or duly 
designated representative having personal knowledge of the facts that the goods have been 
provided or services rendered to the Township and that the goods or services are consistent with 
prior authorizations; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a list of all conforming claims which have been approved by the Chief 
Financial Officer has been prepared and reviewed by the Township Committee and is appended 
hereto as Exhibit A. 
 
 NOW BE IT RESOLVED that the Committee for the Township of Westampton for the 
reasons set forth above hereby approves the payment of the vouchers set forth on the attached 
Exhibit A and this Resolution shall be recorded as part of the minutes of this meeting and shall 
upon approval be open to the public. 
 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township 
Committee of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their 
meeting held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, 
Westampton, New Jersey 08060 on September 19, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township 
Clerk.  
 
 

_______________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
 

Roll Call Vote 
Committee 

Member 
Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       

 

























































TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
 

APPOINT WENDY GIBSON AS MUNICIPAL CLERK  
FOR A 3 YEAR TERM 

 
RESOLUTION No. 142-23 

 
 WHEREAS, per N.J.S.A. 40A:9-133 there shall be a municipal clerk appointed for a 

three-year term; and   

 WHEREAS, no person shall be appointed as a municipal clerk unless that person holds a 

registered municipal clerk certificate; and 

 WHEREAS, all municipal clerks holding office shall continue in office until their 

successors are appointed in the manner provided by N.J.S.A. 40A:9-133; and 

WHEREAS, Wendy Gibson has been serving as Acting Municipal Clerk since 2021 and 

has completed all necessary requirements for certification as municipal clerk, per the State of 

New Jersey with a salary of $16,700.00; and  

 WHEREAS, Ms. Gibson will receive an additional $10,000.00 for her appointment as 

Municipal Clerk for a total salary of $26,700.00 for the position.  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Committee of the Township 

of Westampton, County of Burlington and State of New Jersey that Wendy Gibson, is hereby 

appointed to the position of Municipal Clerk for the Township of Westampton beginning 

September 19, 2023 and ending September 18, 2026. 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township 

Committee of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their 

meeting held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, 

Westampton, New Jersey 08060 on September 19, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township 

Clerk.  

 
________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
Roll Call Vote 

Committee 
Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       

 



TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING REFUNDS  
NOT PROPERLY ISSUED 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 143-23 

 
 WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 54:4-3.30a allows for the exemption from taxation from 
real and personal property for a Veteran who is a resident who has a total or 100% 
permanent disability, and 
 
 WHEREAS, refunds from a previous overpayment from a mortgage payment 
were not properly issued. 
  
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Westampton Township 
Committee authorizes the Tax Collector to refund the following 2023 taxes as indicated 
in Schedule A. 
   

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township 
Committee of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey 
at their meeting held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas 
Road, Westampton, New Jersey 08060 on September 19, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting 
Township Clerk.  

 
 

________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
Roll Call Vote 

Committee 
Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       

 



BLK LOT Q CREDIT PAYABLE TO: ATTN: ST 1 ST 2 CY, ST, ZIP AMOUNT

803.03 10 1,572.80 ELIZABETH TOPOL 11421 SOUTH 53RD AVE LAVEEN, AZ 85339 1,572.80           TDV

1001.12 21 2,214.35 ADVANTAGE TITLE JEN HALL 2037 LIBERTY ROAD ELDERBURG, MD 21784 2,214.35           DUP

1502 12 1,986.89 EDDIE CARR 1021 LAMBERT DRIVE WESTAMPTON, NJ 08060 1,986.89           TDV

1502 24 1,339.54 CORELOGIC CENTRALIZED REFUNDS P.O. BOX 9202 COPPELL, TX 75019-9760 1,339.54           DUP

1704 10 1,552.40 NOBLE-SLATON, J D & NOBLE-VENEY, J 68 TARNSFIELD RD WESTAMPTON, NJ 08060 1,552.40           DUP

1704 55 1,904.95 TIMOTHY DEVOY 1 TENBY COURT WESTAMPTON, NJ 08060 1,904.95           TDV

TOTAL: 10,570.93         

SEPTEMBER 19, 2023 BILL LIST

REFUND CHECK INFORMATION 

MAILING ADDRESS

The blocks and lots listed below are overpaid. Please include them on the September 19, 2023 bill list and refund as indicated. 



1 

 

RESOLUTION No. 09/19/2023 

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC FROM PUBLIC MEETING 

TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 

WHEREAS, Section 7.a of Chapter 231 Public Law 1975, otherwise known as the “Open 

Public Meetings Act” states that except as provided by Section 7.b, all meetings of a public 

body, such as the Township Committee, shall be open to the public at all times; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 7.b provides that the Township Committee may exclude the public 

only from the portion of a meeting at which the Township Committee discusses certain subjects 

which are listed in said Section; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Township Committee desires to discuss certain subject(s) which are 

listed in said section and desires to exclude the public from the portion of the meeting at which 

the Township Committee will discuss said subject(s); and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 8 of Chapter 231, Public Law 1975 states that no public body shall 

exclude the public from any meeting to discuss any matter described in Section 7.b until the 

public body shall, at a meeting to which the public shall be admitted, first adopt a Resolution 

making certain statements with respect to the subject(s) to be discussed. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Committee of the Township of 

Westampton in the County of Burlington and State of New Jersey, as follows: 

 

1. That the Township hereby declares that the general nature of the subject(s) to be 

discussed by the Township Committee in closed session is as follows: 

 
a. Attorney Client Privilege – Personnel 

That the Township Committee hereby declares that its discussion of the aforementioned 

subject(s) may be made public at a time when the Township Attorney advises the 

Township Committee that the disclosure of the discussion will not detrimentally affect any 

right, interest or duty of the Township or any other entity with respect to said discussion. 

 

2. That the Township Committee for the aforementioned reasons hereby declares that the 

public is excluded from the portion of the meeting during which the above discussion 

shall take place and hereby directs the Township Clerk to take the appropriate action to 

effectuate the terms of this Resolution. 



2 

 

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township Committee 

of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their meeting 

held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, New 

Jersey 08060 on September 19, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk. 
 

 

 

 
 

Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
Roll Call Vote 

Committee 

Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       

Carr       

Mayor Henley       

Mungo       

Wright       

 


	09.19.2023
	August Construction
	Police August 2023 monthly packet
	August DPW Report
	August Tax Collector
	Court July Report
	140-23 Police Chief Appointment
	141-23 Payment of Vouchers 09.19.2023
	BILL LIST-SEPTEMBER 19 2023
	142-23 Appoint Municipal Clerk
	143-23 Tax Refunds TDV and Overpayment
	143-23 Sched A 19SEP23 mtg
	09.05.2023 Closed Session



